
 
 

Development Review Board Minutes  October 1, 2013 
 

Burlington Development Review Board 
149 Church Street, City Hall 
Burlington, VT 05401 
www.burlingtonvt.gov/PZ/Boards/DRB    

  Phone: (802) 865-7188 
Fax:  (802) 865-7195 
      

Austin Hart 
Michael Long 

Jonathan Stevens 
Brad Rabinowitz  

Bob Schwartz 
Jim Drummond 

Missa Aloisi 
Alexandra Zipparo (Alt.) 

Israel Smith (Alt.) 

 
 

BURLINGTON DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD 
Tuesday, October 1, 2013 - 5:00 p.m.,  

Contois Auditorium, City Hall, 149 Church Street, Burlington, VT 
MINUTES 

 
Present: Austin Hart (Chair), Jonathan Stevens (Vice Chair), Michael Long, Jim Drummond (late 5.23), 
Alexandra Zipparo (Alt.), Brad Rabinowitz, Missa Aloisi, Israel Smith (alt.) 
Staff: Ken Lerner, Mary O’Neil, Nic Anderson, Scott Gustin 
Absent: Bob Schwartz 

I. Agenda 
Request by Councilor Sharon Bushor to hear 135 University Road first.       

 
II. Communications 

One communication, site plan for 107 Ledge Rd.  Accepted. 
 

III. Minutes 
Two sets of minutes from September 3 and 17.      

 
IV. Public Hearing 

1. 14-0015CU: 107 LEDGE ROAD (RL, Ward 6) Rick & Christina Levinson 
Modifications to originally approved design under ZP# 13-0768CA. (Project Manager: 
Mary O'Neil) 
 
Applicant R. Levinson present.  Sworn in.   
A. Hart asked questions about staff comments.  Asked if modified plan changes site 
coverage?  
R. Levinson – Revised plan shows coverage.  Assuming its lower as the project has been 
scaled back. 
A. Hart asked for comment about conditions on windows.   
R. Levinson – Detailed history of house and construction timeframes.  Newer area and 
foundation was so bad it needed to be removed.  Not from the original construction and 
was an addition.  Builders assume that the addition was in mid to late 50’s based on 
materials and construction.   
A. Hart asked if preference is to not have sunroom type windows. 
R. Levinson – Sunroom scale windows would be all custom and would be 5 more than 
desired and cost would be 3.5 times more.  All windows in existing structure were non-
functioning and not heated or cooled properly.  Trying to make it useful for year round 
use and to have two full walls of windows, it may not be effective to heat and cool.  Is 
cost prohibitive.   
A. Hart asked if any other concerns. 
R. Levinson – Siding concerns.  Asked if the siding material has to be different as 
previously approved and would like to be able to be clapboard instead of shingle at rear 
and south east corner.  Would see a small part from street.   
A. Hart asked if clapboard would match existing reveal. 
R. Levinson – Yes.   
J. Stevens asked about procedure and appeal.  Concerned about coming back later.   
M. O'Neil - detailed reason for application and amendments.   
A. Hart - have new information that was not available based on the demolition which 
makes circumstances different.   

http://www.burlingtonvt.gov/PZ/Boards/DRB


2 
 

Development Review Board Minutes  October 1, 2013 
 

J. Drummond asked for clarification of proposed elevations and windows.   
R. Levinson – Cost is prohibitive.  Have personal changes which affect income so would 
like to scale back project.  Will be phasing the project to help move costs.   
J. Stevens asked if the application needs to be truly phased. 
M. O'Neil - if phasing is needed it should be up front with the board.  Detailed parking.  
Noted site plan shows more pavement and increased parking.  Still within coverage 
allowance but more blacktop.   
A. Hart asked if they would deliberate tonight.  Would like to see phasing schedule.   
R. Levinson – Has email to M. O'Neil.  Without a doubt can be done in three years.   
B. Rabinowitz – Sounds reasonable.   
R. Levinson – Need to have decision of board on windows and would like to reiterate the 
reasons for the application.   
Closed public hearing 6.14pm.   
 

V. Certificate of Appropriateness 
1.  14-0291CA: 135 UNIVERSITY ROAD (RCO-RG/I/R, Ward 1) UVM 

Convert existing soccer bleachers to partially enclosed structure, install roof over entire 
remaining structure, enclose easterly portion for storage, asphalt entry area. (Project 
Manager: Scott Gustin) 
 
Heard first on the agenda.  Applicant S. Fortier et al present.  Sworn in. 
J. Stevens – Staff recommended consent.  Members of public wish to speak.  Asked 
public to speak. 
S. Gustin - noted correction to coverage from report. 
 
S. Bushor - Reviewed application.  Applicant came to Ward 1 NPA.  Concern from 
neighborhood was what is happening with rest of athletic field.  Motion detected lighting is 
preferred and should be clear in conditions.  Storage of salt concern about disruption of 
trucks for access at all times of day and night.  Asked about hours of operation and truck 
traffic.  Want to make sure conditions protect neighbors from truck traffic increases and 
hours.   
 
Martha Lang - 135 University Road is not a valid address.  6 permits on the parcel that 
are not in compliance.  Concern that permit applied for now would be followed through 
on.  Asked about plan for plumbing supply warehouse behind soccer field.  Warehouses, 
distribution center not permitted use.  Salt shed was grandfathered in but this is a new 
building.  NPA presentation had a lot of objection which conflicts with the application.  No 
discussion on size of building or amount of asphalt.  8000sq ft building should not be an 
accessory use.  Concerned about use of plumbing building.   
 
Nancy Kirby - Neighbor.  Questions about noise from trucks and hours of operation.  Also 
concerned about stormwater.  Access road where electrical building is located is a 
concern if this is to be the access road for the salt trucks.  Asked where the access would 
be.  Lighting is a concern.  Doesn’t want lights on 24/7.  Asked about use of bleachers 
and what future use of soccer field would be.   
 
Applicant S. Fortier and others brought up to speak.  Can answer all questions.  Steve 
Schenker, Luce Hillman, Todd merchant.  Detailed application and site.  No additional 
trucks.   
J. Stevens asked about address. 
S. Fortier – City allocates address.   
N. Anderson – Can provide printout from database showing address. 
S. Fortier – Continued presentation.  Detailed history of bleacher structure.  Will have on 
site stormwater infiltration system.  Have State permits for wastewater and for potable 
water etc.   



3 
 

Development Review Board Minutes  October 1, 2013 
 

S. Schenker - detailed application and increase in size of field.  Detailed trucks backing 
up and sound attenuation.   
A. Zipparo asked where truck access would be? 
S. Schenker – All trucks would use East Avenue for entry and exit.      
J. Stevens asked about access and paving.   
S. Schenker – Detailed plan.  Detailed lighting.  Would all be motion sensors.  Down 
lighting dark sky compliant.   
J. Stevens asked how quickly the trucks would back up? 
S. Schenker – Small distance.  50ft apron.  Would back up the minimum.   
J. Drummond asked about materials.   
M. Aloisi asked why being insulated. 
S. Schenker – Need to regulate temperature swings for condensation and have a small 
area that needs to be heated.  Detailed runoff and stormwater mitigation system.   
I. Smith asked why open area has insulated roof and what use would be for future.  
S. Schenker – Would be same roof.   
S. Fortier – There could be a phase 2 to enclose at a later date but not now. 
K. Lerner asked if some noise attenuation could be installed to stop the truck beeping.   
S. Fortier – Use is normal to maintain roads during storms.  Doesn’t think that more is 
needed to be done.  Backup would sporadic during storms.  Electrical building blocks 
noise to N. Kirby.  Will try to mitigate noise but this is normal maintenance operation 
sounds.  Don’t want to wall around property.   
 
J. Stevens asked applicants if this is considered an accessory use.   
K. Lerner - is accessory to University, not just that parcel.  Need to have locations on the 
University for maintenance.   
S. Fortier – This is maintenance accessory to the Institutional use that has occurred in 
that area for many years.  Hours would be typical to the day uses, but during bad weather 
events there would be after hours when needed.  Can load trucks before night and 
reduce amount of reversing.   
M. O'Neil - was project manager for maintenance building and it was determined that it 
was maintenance accessory to larger institutional use.    
S. Fortier – Allowed uses in institutional zone.   
M. Long asked about wooden bleachers removal. 
S. Fortier – Don’t need the current bleachers so will retain structure and re-roof.  Keeping 
press box to retain scoreboard.   
 
A. Zipparo asked N. Kirby about nature of noise on Colchester Avenue.   
N. Kirby – Quiet at night.  Lighting is concern so is happy with proposal for motion 
sensors.  Would be concerned if access drive would now be used.  Happy if not used. 
 
J. Stevens asked NA to provide via email verification of address.   
Public Hearing closed 5.57pm   

   
VI. Other Business 
VII. Adjournment 

Adjourned at 6.14pm. 
 
Deliberative held immediately.   

 
_______________________________________________      ______________        
A. Hart - Chair, Development Review Board                                Date     
 
 
____________________________________ 
Nic Anderson, Zoning Clerk 


	Tuesday, October 1, 2013 - 5:00 p.m.,

